
 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 20th July, 2021 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

Guildhall 

 
 



2 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Please note that this is a public meeting, conducting in person at the Guildhall, Worcester, between 

invited participants and live streamed for general access by audio and video via the Council’s website. 

Due to the current Covid 19 pandemic, access to the building where the meeting is being held is being 

restricted to councillors and a small number of supporting officers. Members of the public who wish to 

participate will be invited to join the meeting via remote means. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You can listen or watch a live stream of the 

meeting via the City Council website www.worcester.gov.uk/councillors-democracy. You have the right 

to inspect electronic copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background 

documents used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the 

foot of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for 

which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor 

background papers are open to public inspection. 

 

Members of the public and press are permitted to report on the proceedings. "Reporting" in the context 

of this meeting includes making a recording of the live streamed content and providing commentary on 

proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the proceedings, including the 

internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda. Public participation will be via remote means and will extend to video and/or audio 

participation or written submission read aloud at the appropriate point in the meeting by the Chair. 

Participants need to indicate that they wish to take part via remote means by 4.30p.m. on the last 

working day before the meeting by telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. A Democratic 

Services Officer will then contact to advise how to participate by remote means, by invitation. Requests 

to participate received later than this cut-off time may not be accommodated. 

 

If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council, he/she will be deemed to 

have given their consent to being recorded and the video and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to 

discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Margaret Johnson, Democratic 

Services Administrator, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 

722085 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk  

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages. Please contact the above-named officer for further information. 

 

 



3 

Environment Committee 
Tuesday, 20 July 2021 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Tom Collins (L) 

 
Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C) 

Councillor Bill Amos (C) 
Councillor Owen Cleary (C) 
Councillor Simon Cronin (L) 

Councillor Louise Griffiths (C) 
 

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G) 

Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 6 

 Of the meeting held on 25th May 2021 to be approved and signed. 
 

5. Environmental Community Grants  

Page(s): 7 - 10 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer 
Tel: 01905 722364 

 



4 

 1. That the Committee agrees a budget of £20,000 for the Environmental 
Community Grants programme as proposed in this report. 

 
2. That the Committee delegates authority to the Corporate Director, Finance 

and Resources to agree the process for assessment and approval. 
 

6. Review of the Delivery and Management of Allotments  

Page(s): 11 - 24 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Phil Gilmour, Head of Environmental Operations 

Tel: 09105 722534 

 That the Committee:  
 

1. Note the contents of this report; 
 

2. Approve the recruitment of a dedicated Allotments Officer; 
 

3. Note that further engagement with key stakeholders and interested parties 

has commenced and is ongoing; and 
 

4. Note that a further report will be presented to this Committee in October 
2021 detailing the outcomes of this further work. 

 

7. Lyme Disease Update  

Page(s): 25 - 28 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Nick McGowan, Street Scene Supervisor (Tress and 
Conservation)  
Tel: 09105 722230 

 That the Committee note the contents of this report outlining plans of installing 
educational signage to be displayed at Laugherne Brook Nature Reserve (and any 

other locations of concern) to raise awareness of potential contraction of Lyme 
Disease from tick bites. 

 

 

8. Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021/22  

Page(s): 29 - 48 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Committee notes the Council’s Quarter 1 performance for 2021/22. 
 

 

9. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 

consideration. 
 



ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
25th May 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Stafford in the Chair 

 Councillors Altaf, B. Amos, Cleary, Collins 
(Vice-Chairman), Cronin, Griffiths, 

Laurenson, Norfolk, Roberts and Udall 
 
Officers:        Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – Homes 

                      and Communities  
                      Phil Gilmour, Head of Environmental  

                      Operations 
                      Nick McGowan, Street Scene Supervisor 
                      Trees and Conservation 

 
Also in Attendance: 

 Liz Bunting and Colin Bedford, National 
Allotment Society 
 

  

 
1 Appointment of Substitutes  

 

None. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillors Cleary and Griffiths – Review of the Delivery and Management of 

Allotments (Minute No. 5) – As allotments holders in the city. 
 

3 Public Participation  
 

Chris Thorp, Site Representative at Northwick Road Allotment Site, addressed the 
Committee in respect of the allotment review. 
 

He made comments and raised points regarding the National Allotment Society 
(NAS) report and the recommendations outlined in the officer’s report.  He felt 

that the Council should have been able to have liaised with the Site 
Representatives rather than the need for an independent review.  He found both 
reports disappointing. 

 
Mr Thorp commented that there were a number of fundamental elements missing 

from the reports.  He commented that the full report from NAS was currently 
unavailable and it was difficult to comment any further without it. He referred to 
the role of the Site Representatives and the Forum and the relationship between 

these and the Council which he felt was not working as well as it could be. 
 

In referring to the options considered in the reports he felt that Option 1 should 
be reconsidered in a detailed discussion with the Site Representatives before 
looking at the option to bring in a full-time officer.  He considered that Option 1 

would be a starting point for a refreshed relationship. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 25th May 2021 2 

 
 

In response, the Chairman thanked Mr Thorp for his participation in the meeting 

and stated that Officers would provide a formal response in respect of comments 
and points raised.  Mr Thorp agreed to provide the Chair with his detailed address 

to Committee. 
 

4 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th March 2021 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
Matters arising: 

 
Minute 34 – Minutes  

 
Any Other Business – Lyme Disease 
 

Members asked for reassurances that a report on this matter would be brought to 
the next meeting.  The Corporate Director – Homes and Communities confirmed 

that the report was almost complete and would be ready for the meeting in July. 
 
Minutes 36 – Action Plan for the First Phase of Delivery of the Environmental 

Sustainability Strategy 
 

In referring to the last paragraph it was stated that a report regarding the impact 
of the action plan in terms of carbon emissions would be prepared for Committee.  

Members asked if this report could be presented at the next meeting.  The 
Corporate Director – Homes and Communities agreed to speak to the officers 
concerned. 

 
5 Review and the Delivery and Management of Allotments  

 
The Committee considered a report on the Review of the Delivery and 
Management of Allotments. 

 
At its meeting on 27th October 2020 the committee agreed that an independent 

organisation be commissioned to help the City Council review the purpose of and 
undertake a review of council allotments.  The review would include ow the 
management of the council allotments currently work and recommendations for 

improvement. 
 

This area of work has been supported by a Task and Finish Group, who agreed 
that the piece of work undertaken should be a comprehensive review of the way 
allotments are managed and should take into account Governance; Data and 

Performance; and Good Practice, as outlined in paragraph 2.2. of the report.   
 

The Task and Finish Group, at its meeting on 20th April 2021, were presented with 
the National Allotment Society (NAS) review report, who were chosen to 
undertake the review, and it was agreed a that a report would be presented to the 

May 2021 meeting of the Committee to share the reviews findings and options 
considered by that Task and Finish Group. 

 
 

Page 2



 25th May 2021 3 

 
 

The Head of Environmental Operations in presenting the report introduced the 

representatives from the National Allotment Society, Liz Bunting and Colin 
Bedford.  The Executive Summary of the NAS review report, dated March 2021, 

was attached ay Appendix 1 to the report, the representatives from NAS 
presented on overview of their findings, identifying the methodology used and 
management options recommended for the Council to consider. 

 
Those Members on the Committee and who were part of the Task and Finish 

Group spoke in support of their endorsement to progress further work in respect 
of Option 2 and confirmed that all options had been discussed at length.  It was 
pointed out however that raising the issue of the provision of allotment land for 

new developments with planning needed to be included as demand for allotments 
was high but availability low. 

 
The Chair reminded Members of the work trying to be achieved with the 
allotments with regard to site security, improving and maintaining the 

sustainability of the sites and ensure that they are being used to their full 
capacity.  The appointment of a dedicated Allotments Officer would be directly 

responsible for the day to day management. 
 
Some Members commented that allotment holders were not aware of the review 

until very recently and it was asked if a communication could be sent to all 
allotment shoulders informing them of the proposals. The Corporate Director – 

Homes and Communities deferred to the representatives from NAS who confirmed 
that contacting the individual plot holders were never part of the process.  The 

Corporate Director stated that he would ensure that the next stage of the process 
included this. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee:  
 

1. Note the contents of the report and in particular the findings of the 

National Allotment Society’s (NAS) Executive Summary “Review of 
Allotment Management in Worcester City”, at Appendix 1; 

 
2. Note the Allotment Task and Finish Group’s endorsement to 

progress further work in respect of Option 2 (The Council to appoint 
a dedicated Allotments Officer, with reduced roles for the Forum 
and the Site Representatives) and direct officers to undertake this 

further work, including further engagement with key stakeholders 
and interested parties; and 

 
3. Note that a further report for decision will be presented to this 

Committee in July 2021 detailing the outcomes of this further work. 

 
6 National Resources and Waste Strategy for England 2018 (RWS) - 

Consultations  
 
The Committee received a report on the National Resources and Waste Strategy 

for England 2018 – Consultations. 
 

The Head of Environmental Operations presented the report, in conjunction with a 
PowerPoint presentation. 
 

Page 3



 25th May 2021 4 

 
 

Consultations on three key policy measures has begun that include: 

 
 Extended Producer Responsibility for Packaging (EPR); 

 Introducing a Deposit Return Scheme (DRS); and 
 Consistency in Household and Business Recycling. 

 

Details of each were provided in paragraphs 3-5 of the report. 

 
The Worcestershire Strategic Waste Partnership have worked together at both 

Officer and Elected Member level to develop a single response that captures each 
Council’s viewpoints on the consultations.  It is intended that each individual 
council in Worcestershire submits the same response. 

 
The report intends to provide Members with the principles that will underpin a set 

of agreed views to each of the consultations, which subject to agreement, will 
then be developed into a final submission via delegations to the Corporate 
Director – Homes and Communities in consultation with the Chair of the 

Committee. 
 

Members thanked officers for the report and the presentation which was found to 
be very useful. 
 

It was questioned whether the recommendation at 1.2 of the report should 
include the Vice Chair.  The Corporate Director – Homes and Communities stated 

that the wording had been agreed with Legal at the time of writing the report but 
would check. 

 
Members debated each of the three key policy measures.  It was felt that as a 
Council we should support DRS in conjunction with EPR, although there were 

some concerns over this.  In view of this, an amendment was proposed to insert 
at 1.2 of the recommendation the following: 

 
‘Instruct Officers to reflect the view that household waste collection does not 
necessarily negate the value of DRS’. 

 
The Chair agreed that the wording be recorded in the minutes but not for inclusion 

in the recommendation, for which officers agreed to note. 
 
In general it was felt that communication with residents was key and there was a 

need to be more informative on what could and could not be recycled, also 
encouraging communication with residents on the reduction of food waste.  

Members also asked that officers endorse food waste collections as other 
authorities have done successfully. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee:  
 

1. Note the contents of the report and in particular, the three policy 
proposals that are currently out to consultation including – 
 

 Extended Producer Responsibility for Packaging (EPR) 
 Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) 
 Consistency in Household & Business Recycling 

 

Page 4



 25th May 2021 5 

 
 

2. Delegates the Corporate Director (Homes and Communities) in 

consultation with the Chair of Environment Committee, to review 
the proposed responses (when available) from the Worcestershire 

Strategic Waste Partnership, to the three consultation exercises 
listed at recommendation 1, to amend these responses, if 
necessary, to reflect the views of Worcester City Council and to 

approve the submission of the final responses  
 

7 Ash Dieback Update Report  
 
The Committee considered an update report on Ash Dieback. 

 
The Street Scene Supervisor (Trees and Conservation) in presenting the report 

provided Members with detailed background information on this matter. 
 
A new bespoke tree inspection software was currently being procured which will 

increase the efficiency and accuracy of tree inspections whist also raising the risk 
levels of all Ash trees to high, making them subject to a 6 monthly inspection 

timeframe.  The new software will allow officers to inspect and record data for 
large wooded areas which the current system does not allow. 
 

The monitoring of Ash trees, including the installation of the software, forms part 
of the Environmental Operations Service Plan, this will be updated quarterly a 

spart of the Performance Review. 
 

It is intended to continue to brief Committee on an annual basis regarding any 
developments and presence of Ash Dieback in the city. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of the report and in 
particular, how the Council intends to manage the presence and impacts 

of Ash Dieback. 
 

8 Arterial Routes (Key Project) Update Report  

 
The Committee considered an update report on the Arterial Routes project. 

 
At its meeting in May 2020, the Committee approved a report that proposed to 
allocate £100,000 from the City Plan Fund to improve strategic and arterial routes 

in respect of litter bin provision and replacement, and the trialling of an arterial 
routes team.  The future cleansing of the A449, including litter bin provision in 

laybys to be considered as part of the project. 
 
The brief of the project was set out in paragraph 2.6 of the report.  Paragraph 3.3 

onwards provides an update on progress against each of the proposed items. 
 

Good progress has been made against each of the items that form part of the 
project and moving forward these will be kept under review and monitored by the 
Environmental Operations Management Team. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of the report and in 

particular, the progress that has been made in respect of Arterial and 
Strategic Routes. 
 

Page 5



 25th May 2021 6 

 
 

9 Quarter 4 Performance Report 2020/21  

 
The Committee received a report on the Council’s Annual and Quarter 4 

performance for the Environment Committee for 2020/21. 
 
The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2020/21 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed with committee. 
 

The Corporate Director – Homes and Communities responded to questions from 
Committee Members, in particular a reassurance that household waste does get 
recycled, for which it was suggested that another visit to the recycling centre, 

when safe to do so, would be useful for those who have not been previously, as a 
reassurance on household recycling. 

 
Reference was made to the Council’s approach to grass cutting in the City as 
some areas were being left uncut, maybe for biodiversity reasons.  It was 

suggested by Members that a communication from officers on the grass cutting 
methods city wide would be useful so Members are aware and can inform 

residents if asked. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the Council’s Annual and Quarter 4 

performance for 2020/21. 
 

10 Any Other Business  
 

None. 
 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.45p.m. to 9.45p.m.  

 
 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

20th July 2021 

Page 6



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 20th July 2021 
 

Report of: Deputy Director for Policy and Strategy 
 

 
Subject: ENVIRONMENTAL COMMUNITY GRANTS  

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee agrees a budget of £20,000 for the Environmental 
Community Grants programme as proposed in this report. 

 
1.2 That the Committee delegates authority to the Corporate Director, Finance 

and Resources to agree the process for assessment and approval of grants.   
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 The Environmental Sustainability Strategy for the City of Worcester 2020-2030 was 

endorsed by the Environment Committee on 27 October 2020 and subsequently 
adopted by Council on 17 November 2020.  

2.2 The Action Plan for 2021-2022 was agreed by the Environment Committee on 16th 

March 2021. Within this action plan, a specific objective was to develop and deliver a 
small grants scheme to support community projects that help to deliver the strategy. 

2.3 The Action Plan suggested an initial sum of £20,000 be allocated to this grants 
scheme, to be funded from the previously agreed £100,000 enabling budget for the 
Environmental Sustainability Strategy.  

3. Preferred Option  
 

3.1 It is proposed that Environmental Community Grants of between £500 and £1000 
will be offered to community groups, charities and voluntary sector organisations 
operating in Worcester. 

3.2 The aim of these ‘environmental community grants’ would be, as outlined in the 
Action Plan, to increase community involvement and engagement in environmental 

sustainability, and to seed fund small projects which will provide stepping stones to 
larger projects. As well as funding stand-alone projects, grants could also be used to 
match fund, supplement or show local support for larger grant applications.  

3.3 These grants will complement the existing community grants scheme, which can 
fund higher value environmental projects. It is expected that through offering and 

promoting small grants, specifically dedicated to environmental objectives, smaller 
community groups such as ‘friends of’ groups will be encouraged to apply.  

3.4 Grants must fulfil one of the following criteria in order to be funded from this 

scheme:  

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



 

 Lead to a direct reduction in carbon emissions from any source (residential, 

businesses, transport etc) 

 Enable a future reduction in carbon emissions 

 Improve resilience to climate change 

 Benefit the natural environment – eg. improved biodiversity, reduced pollution 

 Reduce waste 

 Increase environmental awareness amongst residents, businesses and visitors to 

the city  

3.5 Applicants will also be required to demonstrate the following:  

 The need for the project  
 A way of measuring the success of the project 

 That the people and resources required for success are in place 
 That the project will represent value for money 
 

3.6 It is proposed that environmental community grant awards will be between £500-
and £1000, allowing for a maximum of 40 grants should all be of the lowest amount.  

3.7 It is proposed that organisations will be able to receive up to two grants in a financial 
year, subject to demand, but only one grant per project. If an organisation applies a 
second time this must be for a separate project.  

3.8 The application and decision processes will be as straightforward and streamlined as 
possible, allowing for those not familiar with making grant applications to be 

successful as appropriate for their projects.  

3.9 Following initial officer checks on eligibility of an application, an officer grant panel 
will be established for the technical assessment of each grant application.  

3.10 Relevant ward Members will be consulted on each approved application, giving them 
the opportunity to consider match-funding the grants from ward budgets.  

4. Alternative Options Considered 
 

4.1 Not to offer these grants. This would weaken the Council’s support for grassroots 

community engagement to work towards becoming carbon neutral as a city and gain 
other vital environmental improvements, such as responding to the declared 

biodiversity emergency.  

4.2 Grants at a different level. The value of the grants on offer has been specifically 
chosen so as to offer a route for smaller projects, which would not require the higher 

level of funding offered by the existing Community Grants. It is hoped that by 
providing a smaller amount of easy to access funding, projects would be successfully 

started and then able to apply for larger grants in the future. Grants of a lower 
amount will be administratively prohibitive.  

5. Implications 

 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

The maximum spend to 31 March 2022 would be £20,000. After this, the success of 
the grants would be reviewed and a further paper brought before this Committee 
determining options.  

Page 8



 

There are no budget implications as the costs can be met from the previously 
approved Environmental Sustainability Strategy enabling budget of £100,000.  

 
The full £100,000 allocated to the enabling budget remains and there are no current 
commitments for this funding. £10,000 match funding from the enabling budget for 

a heat networks feasibility study was approved by this Committee in July 2020, 
however the Heat Networks Delivery Unit (part of the Business, Energy and 

Industrial Strategy department) subsequently offered to fully fund this work.  
 

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

As described, the Council already offers community grants. These grants would 
operate on a similar basis but with lower grants available and specific criteria and 

outcomes identified. The application, assessment and award process, would be 
similar to and run alongside the existing Community Grants scheme.  

 
As with the existing community grants, these grants would be available for groups 
and organisations but not for individuals.  

 
5.3 Risk Implications 

As with the existing community grants programme, there is a risk that the projects 
do not deliver against the agreed objectives. The terms and conditions for the 
community grants include a claw back mechanism, although implementing this for 

small sums may not be cost effective.  
 

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
This project emanates directly from the Environmental Sustainability Strategy and 
Action Plan, which includes matters of biodiversity. The strategy recognises that it is 

only with the support of partners across the city that the Council can realise its 
goals. Encouraging grassroots actions from new and existing environmental 

community groups is a key part of this.  
 

5.5 Equality Implications 

Some communities and organisations may find it more difficult than others to 
identify and access potential grant funding. This can be mitigated by appropriate 

promotion and support.  
 

5.6 Human Resources Implications 

No human resource implications have been identified in respect of this report.  
 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications 
No health and safety implications have been identified in respect of this report. 

 

5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

Whilst the grants awarded will be relatively small, it is a condition that they will bring 

positive environmental benefits. Supporting community organisations to deliver will 

also bring positive social benefits.  

 
Ward(s):   ALL 

Contact Officer: Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer, 01905 
722364, ruth.corrall@worcester.gov.uk 

Background Papers: Environmental Sustainability Strategy Action Plan for  

2021-22 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 20th July 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject: REVIEW OF THE DELIVERY AND MANAGEMENT OF ALLOTMENTS 

 
1. Recommendation 

 

That the Committee:  
 

1.1 Note the contents of this report; 
 

1.2 Approve the recruitment of a dedicated Allotments Officer; 
 
1.3 Note that further engagement with key stakeholders and interested parties 

has commenced and is ongoing;  
 

1.4 Note that a further report will be presented to this Committee in October 
2021 detailing the outcomes of this further work. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 Following a report to Environment Committee, 25th May 2021 (Appendix 1) it was 
agreed that further work in respect of Option 2 (The Council to appoint a dedicated 
Allotments Officer, with reduced roles for the Forum and the Site Representatives) 

be undertaken by officers, this further work to include further engagement with key 
stakeholders and interested parties. 

 
2.2 The further engagement with stakeholders is still being progressed but has not yet 

been completed. Work is currently in progress to update the Tenants Agreement and 

Handbook, and to create role profiles for the Allotment Officer, Site Representatives 
and Forum.  

 
2.3 Allotment holders have been contacted. They were updated on progress with the 

allotments review and provided with a redacted copy of the NAS report. Recipients of 

the report have been invited to feedback any comments or questions they have.  
 

2.4 Details of the topics that are to be considered as part of the further consultation 
were communicated, these are: 
 

1. A revised tenancy agreement and allotments handbook (these are currently in 
development);  

2. The roles and responsibilities of Site Representatives and Forum;  
3. How we can improve the management of environmental issues, such as bonfires, 

water usage etc. 

 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



 

2.5 A job description with suggested role responsibilities has been created for the new 
post of Allotments Officer; some of the key duties and responsibilities of suggested 

for the role include: 

Ensuring that the allotment service is provided safely and that sites are safe and 
secure, including the managing the safe delivery of improvement and rectification 

works. 

Regular monitoring of sites and liaison with the Site Representatives to ensure that 

tenants are complying with the terms of the tenancy agreement, are using the sites 
safely and employing best environmental practices. 

Proactively managing customer relations and taking responsibility for ensuring 

complaints and stakeholder conflicts are dealt with in a courteous and timely 
manner. 

Lead the creation of an ‘Issues Log’, to record and action site complaints/problems, 
with ongoing management of that log basis. 

Work with Site Representatives to improve the allotment service provision, 
supporting Site Representative elections and ensuring consistent induction of new 
Site Representatives. 

Supporting Site Representatives and the Forum with the delivery of events and 
shows. Promotion of the allotment service, including arranging and hosting allotment 

information days.  

Working with Site Representatives and the Forum to design, deliver and monitor 
green and Bio-diverse initiatives and helping to drive environmental improvements, 

such as water conservation, on-site composting, waste management etc. 

Financial monitoring of the services costs and revenues, identify and supporting 

capital bids for site improvements and new initiatives 

It is recognised that different levels of support and management will likely be 
required at different sites, given the varying levels of site representative experience 

and knowledge, it is expected that the successful candidate will be flexible, and 
capable of adapting their involvement to best suit the requirements of individual 

sites. 

2.6 The recruitment of the Allotment Officer has not yet commenced, this recruitment is 
likely to take some time, given that the successful applicant may have to work a 

notice period, if currently employed. 
 

2.7 Potential options for how a revised fees & charges structure could support the 
service are still under consideration. 

3. Preferred Option  
 

3.1 The preferred option is to commence with the recruitment of an Allotment Officer.  
 

3.2 To present the updated documentation (Tenancy Agreement, Handbook, suggested 

roles and responsibility) to a member briefing session (to be arranged) for 
consideration.  

 

3.3 To share the updated documentation with stakeholders, as part of the consultation, 
for their feedback and comment. 

 

Page 12



 

3.4 To present options for a revised fees & charges structure to a member briefing 
session (as 3.2), for consideration. 

 
3.5 It is then intended to bring a report back to this Committee in October 2021 detailing 

the information gathered during consultation with final proposals for the roles and 

responsibilities of the Allotment Officer, Site Representatives, and the Forum. 
 

4. Alternative Options Considered 

 
4.1 The alternative option considered would be to delay the recruitment of an Allotment 

Officer until after the completion of the stakeholder consultation. This was 
discounted as there continues to be a number of challenges and the service would 
benefit from the introduction of a dedicated resource as soon as possible. 

5. Implications 

 
5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

 

The revenue implications of introducing a dedicated Allotments Officer at PTC level, 
are currently £32,555 per annum. 

 
5.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

 

No Legal or Governance implications have been identified at this stage, however the 
next report will detail any proposed changes to the allotments Terms of Reference, 

roles and responsibilities etc. 
 

5.3 Risk Implications 

 
Improving the way in which allotments are managed will help minimise financial, 

legal and reputational risks to the Council. It will also ensure a greater chance of plot 
holders wanting to sustain active use of their plots. 
 

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
 

It is important for the Council to consider the options for managing allotments and 
concludes as to the best model and method that meets its social, economic and 
environmental priorities. 

 
Improved management of the provision of allotment services will contribute towards 

the City Plan; helping to sustain and improve City assets whilst also encouraging 
users to actively participate in outdoor activity contributing to a healthy and active 

City. 
 

5.5 Equality Implications 

 
The Council would expect all allotment sites to be managed in compliance with the 

Equality Act 2010 and to be working towards best practice accessibility standards. At 
this stage no equality implications have been identified but further work will be 
undertaken ahead of the October 2021 report to ensure no one group of protected 

characteristics is unduly impacted by any set of proposals put forward. 
  

Page 13



 

5.6 Human Resources Implications 
 

Creation of a new role, advertising and recruitment of suitable candidate. 
 

5.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
It is extremely important that allotments are well managed in terms of ensuring 

health and safety for allotment users and visitors. Regular inspections would be 
undertaken by the Allotments Officer, liaising with the site reps (who would retain a 
role in reporting issues).  

 
5.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

 
Allotments have a key role in providing green open spaces for exercise and activity. 

In addition to physical health benefits there is also a mental health benefit and a 
social benefit from the provision of allotments.  
 

This has been particularly highlighted and important this year during the pandemic 
where allotment holders have valued the opportunity to be outdoors in open space 

and also be part of the community spirit that exists amongst allotment sites.  
 
Allotments provide vital patches of green open space within our urban areas that 

must be well managed to support biodiversity and environmental benefit. 
 

 
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Phil Gilmour, Head of Environmental Operations 
Email: phil.gilmour@worcester.gov.uk Tel: 01905 722233 

Background Papers: Allotments Review Report, Environment Committee 

(October 2020) 
 

 

 

Page 14

mailto:phil.gilmour@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 25th May 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject: REVIEW OF THE DELIVERY AND MANAGEMENT OF ALLOTMENTS 

 
1. Recommendation 

 

That the Committee:  
 

1.1 Note the contents of this report and in particular the findings of the National 
Allotment Society’s (NAS) Executive Summary “Review of Allotment  

Management in Worcester City”, at Appendix; 
 
1.2 Note the Allotment Task and Finish Group’s endorsement to progress 

further work in respect of Option 2 (The Council to appoint a dedicated 
Allotments Officer, with reduced roles for the Forum and the Site 

Representatives) and direct officers to undertake this further work, 
including further engagement with key stakeholders and interested parties; 
and 

 
1.3 Note that a further report for decision will be presented to this Committee 

in July 2021 detailing the outcomes of this further work. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 Following a REPORT to Environment Committee, 27th October 2020 it was agreed 

that an independent organisation be commissioned to help the City Council review 
the purpose of and undertake a review of council allotments.  The report was to 
include a review of how the management of council allotments currently works and 

recommendations for improvement. 
 

2.2 In line with the above report, this area of work has been supported by a Task & 
Finish Group including Cllrs Stafford (Chair), Griffiths, Squires, Udall and Alcott. The 
group agreed that the piece of work undertaken should be a ‘comprehensive review 

of the way allotments are managed is required, and should take into account: 
 

Governance 
1. The role of the Forum and its Executive Committee, including the election process 

and the Forum constitution; 

2. The role of the Council and how this links with the Forum – i.e. which 
organisation is responsible for the various aspects of allotment management; 

3. How day to day matters such as plot take up, non-cultivation of plots and more 
complex cases such as disputes are managed; 

4. How the 3 self-managed allotment sites operate and how this compares with the 

other sites; 
 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s49023/2020-10-27%20Allotment%20Review.pdf


 

Data and Performance 

1. A review of documentation and procedures relating to allotment management; 

2. How publicity and information about allotments is provided to residents; 
3. Consultation with customers, forum members (‘site reps’), council officers and 

elected members about the service; 

4. Costs and financial management; 
 

Good Practice 
1. Options for managing green waste on sites and good practice – including bonfires 

and biodiversity;  
2. Benchmarking and good practice on how allotments are managed in other areas 

 

2.3 A subsequent procurement process was undertaken and in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee the National Allotment Society (NAS) were 

chosen to undertake the review.  
 

2.4 The latest meeting of the Task & Finish Group was held on 20th April 2021 at which 

the NAS review report was presented and discussed. The group subsequently agreed 
that a report be developed for May 2021 Committee that shared the reviews findings 

and options, and that sought direction to progress with a preferred option as agreed 
by Task & Finish Group members 

 

2.5 The Executive Summary of the NAS review report (March 2021) is attached at 
Appendix 1 and to further support the item at Committee, representatives from 

NAS will be in attendance to present an overview of their findings. 
 
3. Key Findings from National Allotments Society (NAS) Review  

 
3.1 The current system of allotment management includes two Self-Managed sites where 

the allotment holders take responsibility for managing their specific sites. The 
remaining sites are managed by the Council and directly let to plot holders.  
 

3.2 Direct Let sites generally have site representatives that interact with Officers.  An 
intermediary group, the Forum, is in place; the Forum was designed to act as a 

conduit for discussion between the council and the Direct Let sites users/Site 
Representatives.   
 

3.3 The NAS review found that the Council management of the sites was spread across 
several Officers; there was no one Officer directly responsible for day-to-day 

management. 
 

3.4 Although this type of approach can have benefits in terms of resilience and avoiding 
single point of failure, based on the wider findings within the report and in order to 
clarify and improve lines of responsibility, it is considered beneficial for the council to 

have a dedicated resource so that site holders, site representatives and key 
stakeholders have a point of contact whose primary focus is the management of 

allotments.  
 

3.5 The review found that the two Self-Managed sites demonstrated a strong community 

spirit, with several plot holders indicating that site management had improved during 
their tenancy. There is good communication from the Management Committee and 

on-site problems are being resolved quickly. 
 

Page 16



 

3.6 This was a very pleasing aspect of the report and does illustrate the benefits of what 
an effectively managed and administered self-managed site can deliver. Long term it 

is the aspiration of the council to encourage as many sites as possible to move 
towards self-management but only where sites are ready and able to do so.  
 

3.7 There is variation in how each of the sites operate, their condition and the level of 
engagement between site representatives and the council. It is considered necessary 

therefore for improvements to be made in several key areas driven by a dedicated 
resource, that will enable us to move towards a position where we can support more 
sites to become self-managed.  

 
3.8 Allotment holders on the Direct Let sites reported that the management of sites 

needed improvement. There was a belief that the Forum arrangements were not 
working as well as they could. Relationships between forum members and perceived 

lack of transparency around election of forum members were just two of the issues 
raised. Communication was reported as being poor, with no coherent management 
messages reaching the sites. 

 
3.9 Although there has been a focus on forum arrangements, it is the view of officers 

that communication between council and site holders/representatives and vice versa 
is a shared challenge and an opportunity to work together on so that there is a flow 
of relevant information both ways in a more streamlined and modern manner. 

 
3.10 Retaining a forum would seem a prudent and sensible approach resulting from the 

review, but it would seem that the role of the forum and its membership requires 
refreshing. The council hold forums in other areas of its work such as Bereavement 
Services and Gull Management and these provide a relevant flow of information from 

the council and also enables the council to consult on future proposals and ideas 
before they reach more formal stages of consideration.  

 
3.11 It is envisaged that moving forward and subject to further engagement, that the 

forum arrangements would be driven by the dedicated allotment resource with a 

view to clarifying the roles and responsibilities of the forum and maximising its 
usefulness. Having a dedicated resource also has the potential to reduce the number 

of site/plot specific issues raised at the forum, instead these being picked up more 
regularly through the links made between site holders / representatives and the 
dedicated resource 

 
3.12 The review suggested six possible management arrangements for consideration by 

the Council: 
 
1. Retain the existing management but improve and formalise the relationship 

between the Council and the Forum, with a reduced role for the Forum; 
 

2. The Council to appoint a dedicated Allotments Officer, with reduced roles for the 
Forum and the Site Representatives; 

 

3. The Council to take the allotment service back in-house (with dedicated Senior 
Officer and dedicated Administrator); removal of both the Forum and site 

representative functions; 
 

4. All sites to become Self-Managed; 
 

Page 17



 

5. The Council to let the allotment service to an external contractor; 
 

6. The Council to appoint a Limited Company (run by volunteers) to manage the 
service. 
 

3.13 As set out in para 3.1 – 3.8 of this report, it would seem overall beneficial to 
progress plans for Option 2, and putting in place a dedicated allotment officer 

resource in the medium term in order to tackle the range of challenges that have 
been identified in the NAS review report and which are faced by both the 
Environmental Operations Service and plot holders and site representatives. 

 
3.14 Having this dedicated resource would enable the council to have both the capacity 

and the right skills in place to take full responsibility for improving the allotments 
service with one of the key aspects of the role being proactive engagement with plot 

holders and site representatives, rather than mostly reactive which is the current 
operating model. 

4. Preferred Option  
 
4.1 As outlined within the main body of the report the preferred option following 

consideration of the review document by officers and consultation with the 
Allotments Task & Finish Group, is to progress further work around the 

implementation of option 2 – ‘The Council to appoint a dedicated Allotments Officer, 
with reduced roles for the Forum and Site Representatives.  
 

4.2 This further work will include further engagement with plot holders, site 
representatives and the forum to look at how option 2 can be best implemented and 

the structures and arrangements that will need to be in place to support it. 
 

4.3 These structures and arrangements will include things that have direct benefits to 
the Council as well as plot holders. Opportunities around environmental performance 
and biodiversity will be explored as well as more traditional things such as site 

licenses and fees & charges. 
 

4.4 It is then intended to bring a report back to this Committee in July 2021 for decision 
that will set out options for implementing option 2.  

 
5. Alternative Options Considered 

5.1 The NAS review report set out 6 options for consideration, all of which have been 
considered by officers and the Task & Finish Group. 

5.2 In respect of option 1, this was discounted as it is evident that there are a number of 

challenges with the existing arrangements and manner in which the service is 
delivered, and this option felt an ‘as is’ option. 

5.3 In respect of option 3, this was discounted because it was felt that there is a positive 
role that both a forum and site representatives can and should make and therefore 
the council is committed to clarifying and improving this, rather than removal. 

5.4 In respect of option 4, although a longer-term aspiration moving to all self-managed 
sites at present is deemed impractical due to the variation in factors such as site 

condition, levels of engagement and governance challenges. 

Page 18



 

5.5 In respect of options 5 and 6, these were both discounted at this current time as 
such arrangements could take some time to work through and came with their own 

set of risks. It was felt option 2 would enable the council to improve the basic 
building blocks for a good quality allotments service in the shorter period of time.  

6. Implications 

 
6.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

 
The NAS review report highlights that some sites are in need of upgrades, 
refurbishment or safety improvements; developing a capital investment programme 

would form part of the Allotment Officer’s role, working with Property Services and 
Finance. 

 
The revenue implications of introducing a dedicated Allotments Officer will form part 

of the July 2021 report and further work will need to be carried out to identify 
whether a single role can be formulated within existing resources or whether the 
requirement is for a new post as an addition to the organisational headcount. 

 
In managing the revenue implications that the NAS review report has highlighted, 

the July 2021 report will present a range of options around how a revised fees & 
charges structure could support the introduction of option 2. 
 

6.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
 

No Legal or Governance implications have been identified at this stage, however the 
next report will detail any proposed changes to the allotments Terms of Reference, 
roles and responsibilities etc. 

 
6.3 Risk Implications 

 
Improving the way in which allotments are managed will help minimise financial, 
legal and reputational risks to the Council. It will also ensure a greater chance of plot 

holders wanting to sustain active use of their plots. 
 

6.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
 
It is important for the Council to consider the options for managing allotments and 

concludes as to the best model and method that meets its social, economic and 
environmental priorities. 

 
Improved management of the provision of allotment services will contribute towards 
the City Plan; helping to sustain and improve City assets whilst also encouraging 

users to actively participate in outdoor activity contributing to a healthy and active 
City. 

 
6.5 Equality Implications 

 

The Council would expect all allotment sites to be managed in compliance with the 
Equality Act 2010 and to be working towards best practice accessibility standards. At 

this stage no equality implications have been identified but further work will be 
undertaken ahead of the May 2021 report to ensure no one group of protected 

characteristics is unduly impacted by any set of proposals put forward. 
  

Page 19



 

6.6 Human Resources Implications 
 

There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
 

6.7 Health and Safety Implications 

 
It is extremely important that allotments are well managed in terms of ensuring 

health and safety for allotment users and visitors. Regular inspections would be 
undertaken by the Allotments Officer, liaising with the site reps (who would retain a 
role in reporting issues).  

 
6.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

 
Allotments have a key role in providing green open spaces for exercise and activity. 

In addition to physical health benefits there is also a mental health benefit and a 
social benefit from the provision of allotments.  
 

This has been particularly highlighted and important this year during the pandemic 
where allotment holders have valued the opportunity to be outdoors in open space 

and also be part of the community spirit that exists amongst allotment sites.  
 
Allotments provide vital patches of green open space within our urban areas that 

must be well managed to support biodiversity and environmental benefit. 
 

 
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: Phil Gilmour, Head of Environmental Operations 
Email: phil.gilmour@worcester.gov.uk Tel: 01905 722233 

Background Papers: Allotments Review Report, Environment Committee 

(October 2020) 
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s49023/

2020-10-27%20Allotment%20Review.pdf  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

mailto:phil.gilmour@worcester.gov.uk
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s49023/2020-10-27%20Allotment%20Review.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s49023/2020-10-27%20Allotment%20Review.pdf


 

 
         

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

REPORT FOR WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL - ALLOTMENT REVIEW.   26TH MARCH 2021 

 

 

1.PURPOSE 

To conduct a comprehensive investigation of current allotment practices at Worcester City council.  
This covers governance, management structure, site practices, financial and environmental 
impacts.  Using the information gathered, to present alternative options for improving allotment 
management and assisting in achieving the Council’s objectives. 

2. METHODOLOGY 

The present management approach was interrogated by the following means: 

i) Every site was visited to gain an understanding of the issues each faces and how they are 
addressed. 

ii) All plotholders and site representatives had the opportunity to express their views, 
through an online survey or telephone interview where not connected to the internet. 

iii) Zoom meetings were held to ask specific questions to each of the following stakeholder 
groups: 

 
 Councillors T and F Task Group Environmental Committee 
 Council Officers 
 Forum Executive Members 
 Site Representatives from the Direct Let Sites 
 Management Committees of the Self-Managed Sites 

 
iv) Worcester City Council was benchmarked against six other Councils of a comparable size. 
v) Weekly feedback to the Council  

 

3. FINDINGS 

3.1 Self- Managed Sites - management 

The Self-managed sites were investigated and both had a strong community spirit, with 71% of 
plotholders saying that site management had improved during their tenancy.  Communication from 
the Management Committee appears good and problems on sites generally resolved quickly. 

 

 

Page 21



 

Both sites have been able to keep the rents to £55, lower than the rates charged by Worcester City 
Council and produce a surplus. 

3.2 Direct Let Sites – management 

An intermediary group, the Forum, was initially set up as a means to devolve aspects of allotment 
management and act as a conduit for discussion between the council and the Direct Let Sites.  The 
view of both site representatives and Council Employees, is that this is not working, mainly because 
of the attitude of strong-willed members of the Forum.  Communication is poor and a coherent 
management message is not reaching the sites. 

Fortunately, sites representatives are respected on their own sites and have been able to maintain 
support from plotholders.  Approximately 50% of tenants think that site management has 
improved to some extent in recent years. 

The Forum Executive is aware of these problems and admit that this is the main reason why 
Council employees have not attended their meetings for some time.  Neither the Forum 
Constitution, nor the Council’s Tenancy agreement are fit for purpose and require re-writing. 

4. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

4.1 Biodiversity 

With 82% of Worcester plotholders being either well informed or aware of the need for 
biodiversity, there is a sound basis to move forward using good practices.  Other organisations such 
as the Wildlife Trust and the Worcestershire Environmental Group, recognise the importance of 
allotments in creating wildlife corridors in City space.  This presents an opportunity for WCC to take 
the lead in co-ordination links between these groups and allotment sites as a means to achieving 
one of the Council’s goals. 

4.2 Bonfires and composting 

Bonfires are widely used across all sites for the disposal of woody material, weeds and flood debris.  
It is now commonly accepted that garden bonfires are unnecessary, affect wildlife and cause 
nuisance and pollution.  Some plotholders feedback said that they had to leave their site for health 
reasons when fires were burning. 

This issue could be addressed by education, about which materials can be composted or used as a 
mulch.  Additionally, encouragement could be given to the formation of site groups to deal with 
composting of bulkier materials.  A more co-ordinated response from WCC is needed to ensure the 
flood debris is collected and disposed of in the correct manner. 

4.3 Water Use  

Water is a significant cost for most Local Authorities and for one major City Council in 2009 its 
allotments accounted for over 10% of their total usage, it is evident that WCC also have a problem 
with usage of water.  Many Local Authorities have responded to this by removing orthodox taps, 
barring the use of hosepipes and installing self- filling water troughs to improve conservation and 
reduce the risk of contaminating the water supply. 

 

Page 22



 

Rainfall harvesting can play a valuable part, but although 76% of Plotholders claim to do this, our 
site visits did not support the evidence claimed that this is widely practiced.  One Worcester Self-
Managed site has implemented a water surcharge for plots utilizing green house or polytunnels. 

4.4 Increasing Access 

The gender profile of Worcester plot-holders was predominantly men – 60/40% compared to a 
recent NAS survey which showed a 53/47% male to female ratio, with women dominating in some 
regions. 17% of the Worcester plot-holders gardened as a family with children.  

One facility that does encourage access by a much wider cross section of the community (families, 
disabled residents and women) is the provision of toilets. This is mentioned 13 times in the direct 
let site feedback and twice in the devolved site feedback.  

Lottery funding for a composting toilet would be an option for the self-managed sites, Awards for 
All has funded numerous allotment toilets over the last 10 years.  

A search of the National Lottery website shows that £10million of Lottery money has gone into 
allotment projects over the last 16 years (746 projects) with nothing to Worcester City allotments 

5. OPTIONS FOR WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL 

After examining all the data collected, NAS offer Worcester City Council, six options to demonstrate 
the ways in which allotments within the City can be managed 

5.1 Option 1 - Worcester City Council stay as they are with significant changes 

Within this option Worcester City Council would have to take a more definite role, the problems in 
need of rectifying have been outlined in detail within the full report 

5.2 Option 2 – Worcester City Council appoint a full time Allotment Officer 

This would involve the appointment of a dedicated officer, with previous experience of allotment 
management.  In this instance it would be good practice to have a consultative body from the 
plotholders, so that they still have a voice. 

5.3 Option 3 – Worcester City Council take back the allotments in house 

Again, this option would be difficult to achieve without the appointment of a dedicated person, or a 
total restructure of how the authority delivers the service.  Within this option, there would be a 
cessation of the Forum and removal of site representatives. 

5.4 Option 4 - Worcester City Council adopt Self-Management 

Associations become responsible for overall management, along with day-to-day functions.  This 
would require a programme of education / assistance to give confidence to all Associations to take 
on this role, ensuring a smooth transfer. This option may require some capital investment prior to 
leases being signed. 

 

 

 

Page 23



 

5.5 Option 5 – Worcester City Council contract out the allotment to an   

                          Independent Contractor 

With option five a competitive tendering process needs to be in place, this option may improve 
efficiency and help with budgetary controls. 

5.6 Options 6 – Worcester City Council form a Limited Company to manage 

                            Allotments in the City 

Worcester City Council offer a lease to a Limited Company formed from keen volunteers who are 

prepared to manage and oversee the allotment associations.  This is a format that is working in 
other regions and is mentioned in the Benchmarking section of the full report. 

This may also require substantial capital investment, prior to a group taking on obligations. 

6. CONCLUSION  

The systems currently in place, for managing direct let sites are not working, the options above 
need to be carefully considered if the Council is to move ahead with a structure it can rely on for the 
future. 

Cost implications have been set out in the full report.  There is scope to extend the measures in 
place to reduce the environmental impact and improve biodiversity. 

Access to allotments has been greatly appreciated, during the pandemic period we have 
experienced over the last twelve months. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 24



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 20th July 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Homes and Communities 
 

 
Subject: LYME DISEASE UPDATE REPORT 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That Committee note the contents of this report outlining plans of installing 
educational signage to be displayed at Laugherne Brook Nature Reserve 

(and any other locations of concern) to raise awareness of potential 
contraction of Lyme Disease from tick bites. 

 
2. Background 
 

2.1 The issue of Lyme Disease was raised via a Member question at the September 2020 
Council meeting, and the Chair of Environment Committee, in answering the 

question, committed to a report being brought back to this committee with further 
information. 
 

2.2 Lyme disease (also known as Lyme borreliosis) is a potentially serious bacterial 
infection transmitted via tick bites. Only a small number of ticks are infected with the 

bacteria that cause Lyme disease. A tick bite can only cause Lyme disease in humans 
if the tick has already bitten an infected animal. 
 

2.3 Originally Lyme Disease was thought to be more prevalent in marshy areas however 
recent studies show that it can be found over any form of green space. Cases 

however do typically rise with in summer months due to a combination of a more 
habitable climate for the Tick and more pedestrian footfall of these effected areas.  
 

2.4 Contracting Lyme Disease fortunately remains a rare occurrence with overall 
contraction rates in England during 2019 being 903 in total. Only 20 of these 

happening in the West Midlands. Unfortunately, with this low infection rate comes a 
widescale lack of knowledge of the disease. 

3. Information  
 

3.1 Although infection rates for this illness remain low (Appendix A) the symptoms can 
be severe, it is because of this that The City and County Council will be embarking 
on a public awareness campaign to help protect frequenters of our green space and 

overall public health.  
 

3.2 This campaign will be delivered using a uniform approach from both participants, 
through different mediums to maximise the campaigns efficiency and making it more 
recognisable.  

 

  

Page 25 Agenda Item 7



 

3.3 Mediums used will include educational posters provided by the charity Lyme Disease 
Action (Appendix B) featuring on pre-existing site notice boards, social media 

communications and press articles during peak visitor times such as hot weather and 
school holidays. 
 

3.4 Information featured in these posters and articles will include how to recognise the 
tick itself, how to remove them, the mark left behind, the symptoms of Lyme 

Disease, areas to avoid and how to best reduce the risk of contraction.    
 

3.5 As the installation of Poster and issuing of articles can be achieved in house with 

little disturbance to ongoing services, we foresee the overall financial implications of 
this campaign of this campaign to be negligible.  

 

For Further Information  

Public Health England – Lyme Disease  
NHS Choices – Lyme Disease 
Public Health England - Tick leaflet  
 

 
 

Ward(s):  All 

Contact Officer: Nick McGowan, Team Supervisor - Street Scene – Tree & 
Conservation Officer Tel: 01905 722230/07720204015, Email:  
nick.mcgowan@worcester.gov.uk 

  

Page 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/lyme-disease-guidance-data-and-analysis
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/lyme-disease/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/694158/PHE_Tick_Leaflet.pdf
mailto:nick.mcgowan@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
Appendix A – Acute Cases in Quarters 1-2 of 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

Appendix B – Lyme Disease Action Poster 

 

Page 28

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/694160/PHE_Tick_Poster_A4.pdf


 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 20th July 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2021/22 

 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Environment Committee notes the Council’s Quarter 1 performance 

for 2021/22. 
 

2. Performance Reporting Framework 
 
2.1 A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page 

overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under 
the functions of each committee. 

 
2.2 The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief 

narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the 

form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of 
progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG 

assessments (Red, Amber or Green). 
 

2.3 The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2021/22 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee. 
 

2.4 The Quarter 1 performance report for the Environment Committee is attached as 
Appendix 1.   
 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer:   Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,  
   01905 722407,  

   Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  
Background Papers: None 

Page 29 Agenda Item 8

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 31 Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



2 
 

Environment Committee 

Performance Report 
 
 

Environment Projects & Actions 2021/22 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

Environmental Sustainability Action Plan (continual review and delivery of actions) 

Work continues to progress the actions according to the 
agreed plan. As agreed a detailed review of progress will be 

provided twice annually with the first of these scheduled for 
Environment Committee in the autumn. 

Sponsor David Sutton 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

 

Bereavement Services Facilities Review 

A feasibility study proposal has been submitted and 
presented to the Council's Corporate Leadership Team with 

some amendments requested. The Chair & Vice Chair of 
Environment Committee will be briefed on progress during 

early July. It is therefore hoped to formally commence the 
study during August 2021. 

Sponsor Warwick Neale 

Due Date 31-Aug-2020 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2020 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

Appendix 1 

Page 32



3 
 

 

Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme 

Delivery continues on Phases 1A and 1B of the Green 
Homes Grant scheme, with recent approval from BEIS for a 
small number of solar PV installations to take place to 

balance out the higher than expected costs of external wall 
insulation (EWI). Delays have been experienced due to 

installer availability and availability of materials such as 
scaffolding. Currently the scheme is still on track to deliver 
60 installations by the end of September (20 of these by 

end of August) but risks to this timescale do remain. 
 

The plan for the next phase of delivery, to be focused on 
upgrading low efficiency storage heaters in off-gas flats and 
the installation of other measures in homes such as 

upgraded doors, windows and boiler controls, has been 
approved and marketing will begin shortly. This Phase 2 is 

currently to be completed by the end of December with 
around 80 properties to receive measures. 

Sponsor Nina 
Warrington 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

 

Perdiswell landscaping Phase 2 - Perdiswell Park 

Next phase of project proposes to include: 
 

 Biodiversity enhancements: 
- Meadow 

- Tree, woodland and hedge planting 
- Habitat feature: bird/bat boxes and hibernacula 
- Management of invasive and non-native plants 

 
• Interpretation of the wildlife and the history of the site  

• New all-weather path across the open space between the 

west entrance by the Cricket Club and the existing gravel 

path north of the pitches.  
• Localised path repairs  

• New seats and bins  

• Removal of redundant golfing structures  

 
 Works are planned to start in October 2021.  

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Jul-2019 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

 

Riverside Park Improvements to maintain and enhance Green Flag status 

The improvement works have been prioritised as: 

 
1. Primary and secondary signage around the park 

boundary to promote the identity and provide information to 
visitors. 
 

2. Surfacing, landscaping, railings and furniture at Le 
Vesinet Gardens off Grand Stand Road. 

 
3. Re-design of Bromwich Parade entrance by City bridge to 
include a new gate layout. 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

30-Sep-2020 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

Page 33



4 
 

 
4. Repairs to paving/surfacing adjacent Sabrina and Diglis 

bridges. 
 

5. Changes to pathways along side the river at Pitchcroft. 
 
Procurement to carry out the works in priority order will 

start in Quarter 2. 
 

In addition to the project work we will be surveying the river 
banks for Japanese Knotweed and arranging remedial action 
as required.  

 
 

A programme of environmental and sustainability communications and campaigns 
to promote awareness 

Q1 April – June 2021 

 
Events 
12 environment and sustainability related events took place 

in Q1. This is due to ongoing Covid-19 lockdown 
restrictions. These events included: 

• Chestnut Community Group - bio-blitz  

• Worcester Environmental Group – practical volunteer 

sessions  

• Multiple litter picking events  

• Bird & Invertebrate surveying  

• Community orchard planting  
 

Promotion 
These opportunities, and others as supported or lead via 
partners, were promoted via the monthly Community 

Engagement Enewsletter to over 600 groups, organisations 
and individuals, advertised via the Community Engagement 

poster round in each of the 38 noticeboards in parks and 
open spaces, and were also promoted on social media 
where relevant. 

 
In terms of actual posts on social media: 

• There were 7 posts on each platform (Facebook, 
Instagram, Twitter) relating to Environment and 

Sustainability.  

• This resulted in 36,652 total impressions and 79 

engagements  

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

Page 34



5 
 

 

Develop an action plan to tackle Ash Dieback and increase trees across the City 

Update report presented to May Environment Committee. 
Ongoing management of Ash Dieback now in place – action 
to be closed. 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

Public Bin Investment Programme 

Project criteria amended to include an increase in litter and 
recycling bin quantity across the City. Ward plans are under 
review to show the increase and results are planned to be 

available in Quarter 2. Costings for the improvement 
scheme will also be determined. Individual action plans will 

be issued to Ward Members following approval of the 
scheme. 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2025 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2025 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 

Allotments Review 

Report presented to May Environment Committee, further 
report to be presented to July Committee – on track 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Dec-2021 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Dec-2021 

Current Status   

Expected 

Outcome  
  

 

Strategic Play Area Development Plan 

It is planned for a formal report on this subject to be 
brought to an Autumn 2021 Committee in order to feed into 
the budget setting process for 2022/2023. There is evidence 

to suggest that like many areas nationally there is an under 
provision of play areas across the City, particularly youth 

play areas and this piece of work now requires input from 
colleagues in planning in respect of existing s.106 
opportunities and potential forward pipeline of 

developments that may provide opportunities. In addition 
further mapping is required to identify where 'actual' gaps 

exist taking into account where our population resides and 
spends time etc.  

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2025 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2025 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome  

 

 

Page 35



6 

 

Improve arterial routes 

Update report presented to May Environment Committee. 
Ongoing management now in place – action to be closed.  

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Due Date 31-Mar-2020 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2019 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome   

 
 

Environment Key Performance Indicators 2021/22 
 

PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

 

Carbon Emissions 

Description: Total greenhouse gas emissions from City Council buildings and operations, 

given in tonnes of CO2 equivalent (the emissions of other greenhouse gases 
are expressed in terms of the amount of CO2 that would create the same 
amount of warming). This includes our community and leisure centres. 

 

RAG  Current Value 1,630 Sponsor David Sutton 

Aim to Minimise Current Target   

Annual PI. Emissions figure for 2019/20 (baseline year) confirmed as 1662 tonnes CO2e. 
 

This figure includes emissions from transmission and distribution of electricity and business 

Page 36



7 

travel, which are classed as scope 3 emissions. Water usage unfortunately has not been able 
to be included due to a lack of data. 
 

This calculation includes only buildings within the City Council's direct control and therefore 
does not include buildings such as the leisure and community centres, which are owned by 

the City Council but managed by external providers/partners. 
 

An initial estimate for emissions for 2020/21 is approx. 1450 tonnes of CO2e, a fall of around 
12% due to the purchase of zero carbon renewable electricity. 
 

It is anticipated that 2020/21 figures will be confirmed in Q2 2021/22.  
 

% of household waste recycled and composted 

Description: The percentage of household waste collected which has been sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting (green bins and brown bins) 

 

RAG  Current Value 39.8% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 40% 

The amount of recyclable and compostable waste collected in Q1 2021-22 decreased by 92 

tonnes in total compared to Q1 2020/21. 
 

This figure is tracking the estimated percentage target of 40% and has increased by 2.5% 
compared with 37.3% in 2020/21. 
 

*Tonnages for June have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Page 37



8 

 

Household waste recycled  

Description: Percentage of household waste that is sent for recycling through green ‘dry 

recycling’ bins only. 

 

RAG  Current Value 31.2% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 30% 

Recyclable waste collected in Q1 2021-22 remained consistent compared to Q1 2020/21 with 

an increase of 5 tonnes. 
 
The figure is above the estimated percentage target and has increased by 2.7% compared 

with 28.5% in Q1 2020-21. 
 

*Tonnages for June have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting 
 

Household waste composted 

Description: Percentage of household waste that is sent for composting. This is waste 

collected from the garden waste collection service and composted (brown 
bins) 

 

Page 38



9 

RAG  Current Value 8.5% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 10% 

The amount of compostable waste collected has decreased by 97 tonnes in the quarter 
compared to 20/21, giving a percentage of 8.5% compared to 8.8 % in 2020/21. 

 
Despite the reduction in tonnage and percentage of garden waste collected, there has been 

an influx of an additional 1100 garden waste customers compared to Q1 2020-21. 
 

*Tonnages for June have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 
 

Residual household waste collected per household (kg) 

Description: The household waste collected NOT including waste sent for reuse, recycling 

or composting  

 

RAG  Current Value 113 Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Minimise Current Target 124 

Residual waste decreased by 726 tonnes (compared to Q1 2020/21) decreasing the average 

kilograms of residual waste per property from 130kg in 2020/21 to 113 in Q1 2021/22. This 
is against an estimated target of 124 kg. 
 

The change in the waste volumes is seen as a direct result of behavioural change driven by 
the COVID pandemic with previous lockdowns meaning residents spending more time at 

home and therefore creating additional waste that would normally not have found its way 
into the domestic collection waste stream. 
 

With Government guidance changing as a return to a more normal way of life continues, the 
volume of residual waste is decreasing and returning to more normal levels shown before the 

pandemic. (107kg in Q1 2019-20) 
 
*Tonnages for June have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Page 39



10 

 

Total amount of household waste collected per household (kg) 

Description: The total amount of household waste collected from black, green and brown 

bins, bulky waste, street sweepings and separately collected recycling (e.g. 
bring banks) 

 

RAG  Current Value 188 Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Minimise Current Target 187 

The total amount of household waste collected decreased by 819 tonnes (compared to Q1 
2020/21) decreasing the average kilograms of residual waste per property from 207kg in 
2020/21 to 188 in Q1 2021/22. This is against an estimated target of 187 kg. 

 
The change in the waste volumes is seen as a direct result of behavioural change driven by 

the COVID pandemic with previous lockdowns meaning residents spending more time at 
home and therefore creating additional waste that would normally not have found its way 
into the domestic collection waste stream. 

 
With Government guidance changing as a return to a more normal way of life continues, the 

volume of waste is decreasing and returning to more normal levels shown before the 
pandemic. (175kg in Q1 2019-20) 
 

*Tonnages for June have been estimated as they aren’t available at the time of reporting. 

Page 40



11 

 

% of street litter and animal fouling cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of street litter and animal fouling reported by 

customers and dealt with within the agreed response time of 2 working days 

 

RAG  Current Value 84% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

There has been a noticeable increase in the numbers of reported issues, especially in relation 

to animal fouling. The quarter-on-quarter improvement is helped by better complaint 
management. Service performance has improved, but the improvement in the timely ‘sign-
off’ of rectified complaints has also contributed to the quarterly improvement. 
 

% of street detritus and weeds cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of street detritus and weeds reported by 
customers and dealt with within the agreed response time of 5 working days  

 

RAG  Current Value 81% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

07-Jul-2021 Quarter one is the prime growing season and weed complaints tend to be at 

Page 41



12 

their highest, so overall a good operational performance. Again, the quarter-on-quarter 
improvement has benefited from better complaint management and timely sign-off of 

rectified complaints. 
 

% of poor grass maintenance cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of poor grass maintenance reported by customers 

and dealt with within the agreed response time. 

 

RAG  Current Value 77% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Quarter 1 tends to be busied in terms of grass maintenance complaints; some complaints 

relate to areas deliberately left to wildflower. Q1 improvement to Q4 (2020/21) relates to low 
rectification in Q4 (end of mowing season) and improved complaint management Q1. 

Page 42



13 

 

% overflowing litter / dog waste bins dealt within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of overflowing litter / dog waste bins reported by 

customers dealt with within agreed response time. 

 

RAG  Current Value 94% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

More resources deployed throughout Q1 plus improvements in complaint management. 
 

% fly-tipping cleared within time 

Description: The percentage of incidents of fly-tipping reported by customers and cleared 
within agreed response time. 

 

RAG  Current Value 89% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Good performance, better deployment of resources linked to active complaint management. 

Page 43



14 

 

% of street assessed as Excellent or Acceptable across all five Street Scene Places 

Description: The percentage of assessments to be excellent or Acceptable recorded by 

volunteers across a range of street scene criteria using the Street Scene 
Standards document. Includes North, South, East & West ‘Places’ and the City 
Centre ‘Place’.   

 

RAG  Current Value 88% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Overall there were 60 assessments undertaken against a target of 100, there have been 
delays in recruiting volunteers, so assessments were carried out by Street Scene Technical 

Team. 
 

Volunteer recruitment is progressing and it is expected that the target number of assessment  
in Q2 (100) will be met. 
 

Performance was 88% based on 53 Grade A +B (out of of 60 inspections): 
 
• Grade A - Excellent     15  

• Grade B - Acceptable   38  

• Grade C - Poor Standard  6  

• Grade D - Unacceptable   1  

 
The main issue affecting results related to hedges, this was mainly due to bird nesting 
season. 

Page 44



15 

 

No. of street scene assessments the across City Centre Place by grade  

Description: The number of street scene assessments observed across City Centre Place by 

grade: A = excellent, B = acceptable, C = Poor, D = Unacceptable 

 

Insufficient data for chart 

RAG  Current Value 

A -13 
B – 7 

C - 0 
D - 0 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

20 assessments were undertaken (in-line with plan) of which 13 were Grade A and 7 were 

Grade B. There were nil assessments that resulted in Grade C or D 
 

No. of street scene assessments across 4 Main Places by grade  

Description: The number of street scene assessments observed across City Centre Place by 

grade: A = excellent, B = acceptable, C = Poor, D = Unacceptable 

 
Insufficient data for chart 

RAG  Current Value 

A – 2 
B – 31 

C – 6 
D – 1 

Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target   

Overall there were 40 assessments, against a target of 80 in the main place areas. Delays in 

recruiting volunteers meant assessments were carried out by Street Scene Technical Team. 
 

Volunteer recruitment is progressing and it is expected that the target of 80 assessments in 
Q2 will be met. 
 

Results were as follows: 
 
• Grade A - Excellent     2  

• Grade B - Acceptable   31  

• Grade C - Poor Standard  6  

• Grade D - Unacceptable   1  

 

The main issue affecting results related to hedges, this was mainly due to bird nesting 
season. 
 

Page 45



16 

 

Satisfaction with street cleansing 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 

fairly satisfied with street cleansing in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 67.15% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 63.4% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 

October/November 20120. Satisfaction with street cleansing has improved since the previous 
survey in 2019.   
 

Satisfaction with rubbish collection and recycling 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 
fairly satisfied with rubbish collection and recycling in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 87.83% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 84.12% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 

October/November 2020. Satisfaction with rubbish collection and recycling has improved 

Page 46



17 

since the previous survey in 2019.   
 

Satisfaction with parks and play areas 

Description: % of annual survey respondents who stated that they were either satisfied or 
fairly satisfied with parks and play areas in Worcester City 

 

RAG  Current Value 72.21% Sponsor Phil Gilmour 

Aim to Maximise Current Target 78.76% 

Annual PI. Satisfaction questions were included in the Annual Survey undertaken in 
October/November 2020. Satisfaction with parks and play areas has decreased since the 
previous survey in 2019. 

 
The detailed information will be shared with Place teams in order that improvements can be 

made in the future to raise standards 
 
  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Environmental Community Grants
	6 Review of the Delivery and Management of Allotments
	Appendix 1 - Review of the Delivery and Mangement of Allotments

	7 Lyme Disease Update
	8 Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021/22
	202122 Q1 Performance Report Env App.  Final


